
 
 
 

 
Sue Sturgeon 
Managing Director and  
Head of Paid Service 
 

 

 

Guildford Borough Council 

Millmead House, Millmead, Guildford, Surrey  GU2 4BB 

www.guildford.gov.uk 

Contact Officer:  

John Armstrong, Democratic Services Manager. 
Tel: 01483 444102 

 

 
 

18 October 2016 
 
Dear Councillor 
 

Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE to be 
held in the Leadership Suite, Millmead House, Millmead, Guildford, Surrey GU2 4BB on 
WEDNESDAY, 26 OCTOBER 2016 at 3.15 pm. 
 
Yours faithfully 

 
Sue Sturgeon 
 
Managing Director and Head of Paid Service 
 
 

MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE 
 

Councillor Paul Spooner 
Councillor Matt Furniss 

Councillor Caroline Reeves 
 

Authorised Substitute Members: 
 

Councillor David Bilbé 
Councillor Richard Billington 
Councillor Geoff Davis 
 

Councillor Michael Illman 
Councillor Tony Phillips 
Councillor Pauline Searle 
 

 
QUORUM 3 

 



 

 

THE COUNCIL’S STRATEGIC FRAMEWORK  
 

Vision – for the borough 
 
For Guildford to be a town and rural borough that is the most desirable place to live, work 
and visit in South East England. A centre for education, healthcare, innovative cutting-edge 
businesses, high quality retail and wellbeing.  A county town set in a vibrant rural 
environment, which balances the needs of urban and rural communities alike.  Known for 
our outstanding urban planning and design, and with infrastructure that will properly cope 
with our needs. 
 
Five fundamental themes that support the achievement of our vision: 

 

 Our Borough - ensuring that proportional and managed growth for future 
generations meets our community and economic needs 

 Our Economy - improving prosperity for all by enabling a dynamic, productive and 
sustainable economy that provides jobs and homes for local people 

 Our Infrastructure - working with partners to deliver the massive improvements 
needed in the next 20 years, including tackling congestion issues 

 Our Environment - improving sustainability and protecting our countryside, 
balancing this with the needs of the rural and wider economy 

 Our Society - believing that every person matters and concentrating on the needs 
of the less advantaged 

Your Council – working to ensure a sustainable financial future to deliver improved and 
innovative services 
 
Values for our residents 
 

 We will strive to be the best Council. 

 We will deliver quality and value for money services. 

 We will help the vulnerable members of our community. 

 We will be open and accountable.  

 We will deliver improvements and enable change across the borough. 
 
Mission – for the Council 
 
A forward looking, efficiently run Council, working in partnership with others and providing 
first class services that give our society value for money, now and for the future. 
 



 

 

A G E N D A 
 
ITEM 
 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTES  
 

2.   LOCAL CODE OF CONDUCT - DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS  

 In accordance with the revised local Code of Conduct, a councillor is required to 
disclose at the meeting any disclosable pecuniary interest (DPI) that they may 
have in respect of any matter for consideration on this agenda.  Any councillor 
with a DPI must not participate in any discussion or vote regarding that matter 
and they must also withdraw from the meeting immediately before consideration 
of the matter. 
  
If that DPI has not been registered, the councillor must notify the Monitoring 
Officer of the details of the DPI within 28 days of the date of the meeting. 
 

3.   MINUTES (Pages 1 - 2) 

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting of the Employment Committee held on 6 
October 2016. 
 

4.   EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC  

 The Committee is asked to consider passing the following resolution:- 
  
"That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that 
it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the 
paragraphs 1, 4, and 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act indicated below".  
 

5.   CORPORATE MANAGEMENT TEAM: SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT - POST 
NO. 1.016 (Pages 3 - 10) 
 
(Following consideration of this item the Committee will consider the next item in 
open session.) 
 

6.   INTERIM APPOINTMENTS TO STATUTORY OFFICER RESPONSIBILITIES 
AND REALLOCATION OF LINE MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITIES (Pages 
11 - 18) 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 
 

EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE 
6 October 2016 

 
* Councillor Paul Spooner (Chairman) 

* Councillor Matt Furniss (Vice-Chairman) 
* Councillor Caroline Reeves 

 
*Present 

 
 

EM9   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTES  
 

There were no apologies for absence. 
  

EM10   LOCAL CODE OF CONDUCT - DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS  
 

There were no disclosures of interest. 
  

EM11   MINUTES  
 

The minutes of the meeting of the Employment Committee held on 16 September 2016 were 
confirmed.  The Chairman signed the minutes. 
  

EM12   RETIREMENT OF THE MANAGING DIRECTOR AND RECRUITMENT OF HER 
SUCCESSOR  
 

The Committee considered a report on proposed arrangements for the retirement of the 
Managing Director and the recruitment of her successor. 
  
The Committee noted that, in October 2013, the Council had appointed Sue Sturgeon as Head 
of Paid Service and Managing Director on an initial two year contract.  In July 2015, the Council 
approved a new Corporate Management Team structure and in October 2015 (on the 
recommendation of the Committee) the Council agreed to make the Managing Director post 
permanent with Sue Sturgeon continuing in post as Managing Director, Head of Paid Service 
and Chief Finance Officer (S.151 officer).  
  
The Committee was reminded that, in September 2015, Ms Sturgeon had indicated her 
intention to retire from the post of Managing Director on 31 March 2017.  For a number of 
reasons, she had indicated that it was now her wish to retire at the end of May 2017. 
  
As it was envisaged that the Council would wish to recruit a new Managing Director, who would 
also be designated as the Council’s statutory Head of Paid Service, the Council would need to 
follow its procedures for both the recruitment and appointment of a Head of Paid Service, set 
out in Officer Employment Procedure Rules (OEPR).   
  
The Committee noted that, following discussions with Ms Sturgeon and the Leader of the 
Council, a procedure and timetable for the recruitment and appointment of her successor, had 
been agreed provisionally, subject to this Committee’s comments and approval by full Council 
on 6 October 2016.    
  
The Committee was informed that, although Ms Sturgeon would receive her pension on 31 May 2017 
without early retirement penalty, the Council would be required to cover any pension strain costs, 
which had been confirmed as £21,600.   

  
Having considered the report, the Committee  

Page 1

Agenda item number: 3



 
 

 
 

  
RECOMMEND: 
  
(1)        That the retirement date of 31 May 2017 of the Council’s Managing Director, Sue 

Sturgeon, be confirmed. 
  
(2)        That the Council confirms its wish to retain the Managing Director post and that the post 

continues to be designated as Head of Paid Service. 
  
(3)        That the process and timetable to appoint a successor Managing Director, with a 

preferred start date of mid-May 2017, as outlined in Appendix 1 to the report submitted to 
the Committee, be approved.  

  
(4)       That the pension strain costs of £21,600 be approved. 
  
Reason for recommendation:  
To put in place a succession plan for the recruitment of a new Managing Director. 
 
 
 
 
The meeting finished at 5.30pm 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed   Date  

  

Chairman 
   

 

Page 2

Agenda item number: 3



Document is Restricted

Page 3

Agenda item number: 5
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 4, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

Employment Committee Report 

Report of Head of Paid Service 

Author: Sue Sturgeon 

Tel: 01483 444801 

Email: sue.sturgeon@guildford.gov.uk 

Date: 26 October 2016 

 

Interim appointments to statutory officer 
responsibilities and reallocation of line 

management responsibilities 
 

Executive Summary 
 

Following consideration of the previous item on the agenda, the Employment Committee 
is asked to consider consequential interim appointments and reallocation of line 
management responsibilities, together with options for the appointment of a Deputy 
Managing Director, pending the appointment of a new Managing Director/Head of Paid 
Services in 2017. 
  
Recommendation to Employment Committee 
 
The Committee is asked to RECOMMEND to Council: 
 

(1)  That, subject to the completion of the agreement referred to in the ‘Not for 
Publication’ Item 5 on this agenda,  

 
(a) the following temporary arrangements and appointments be made in the 

interim, pending the appointment of a new Managing Director/Head of Paid 
Service: 
 

(i) Legal Services, Democratic Services, Electoral Services and Human 
Resources teams be line-managed by the Director of Resources; 

 
(ii) Communications and Policy & Partnerships teams be line-managed by 

the Managing Director/Head of Paid Service; 
 
(iii) the Legal Services Manager (Sandra Herbert) be appointed as the 

Council’s Monitoring Officer in accordance with Section 5 of the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989. 
 

(b) the Managing Director be appointed as the Council’s Electoral Registration 
Officer in accordance with Section 8(2)(a) of the Representation of the 
People Act 1983 and Returning Officer for election of borough and parish 
councillors, in accordance with Section 35(1) of the 1983 Act. 

 
 

Page 11

Agenda item number: 6



 
 

 
 

(2) That the Council confirms the appointment of the Electoral Services Manager 
(Elaine Bradbrook) as Deputy Electoral Registration Officer. 

 
(3) That consideration be given as to how best the role of Deputy Managing Director 

may be filled on an interim basis pending the appointment of a new Managing 
Director/Head of Paid Services. 
 

(4) That the proposed salary scale for the Managing Director/Head of Paid Service 
post be amended as follows: 

 

 £120,877 

 £123,712 

 £126,616 
 

(5) That, upon the retirement of Sue Sturgeon, the Head of Financial Services 
(Claire Morris) be appointed as the Council’s Section 151 Officer (Chief Finance 
Officer). 
 

(6) That the current Pay Policy Statement be amended to reflect the changes 
referred to in paragraphs (1) – (4) above, as appropriate. 
 

(7) That the Monitoring Officer be authorised to make all necessary constitutional 
amendments. 

 
Reason for Recommendation:  
To deal with the consequential arrangements following completion of the agreement 
referred to in the ‘Not for Publication’ Item 5 on this agenda. 
  

 
1. Purpose of report 

 
1.1 To agree interim arrangements consequential on the completion of the  

agreement referred to in the previous item, together with a small number of 
changes required following the Council’s decision on 6 October 2016 to confirm 
Sue Sturgeon’s retirement date and the process and timetable for the 
appointment of her successor as Managing Director. 

 
1.2 These arrangements will ensure that the Council’s Corporate Management Team 

retains the necessary flexibility, whilst maintaining momentum on the Council’s 
ambitious change agenda.  

 
2. Strategic Framework 
 
2.1 The Corporate Management Team is responsible for providing, directing and 

managing resources to ensure delivery of the Council’s Corporate Plan priorities 
and to be well placed to meet future challenges. 
 

3. Background 
 

3.1 Following consideration of the previous item on the agenda, the Employment 
Committee is asked to consider the continuing responsibilities of the Director of 

Page 12

Agenda item number: 6



 
 

 
 

Corporate Services, consequential interim appointments and reallocation of line 
management responsibilities, together with options for the appointment of a 
Deputy Managing Director, pending the appointment of a new Managing 
Director/Head of Paid Services in 2017. 

 
4. The Director of Corporate Services 
 
4.1 The Council’s reasoning on making a fixed term appointment for the post of 

Director of Corporate Services was to give the Council more flexibility in 
determining its future management structure, particularly given the possible 
impact of universal credit and opportunities for joint working. Since the last 
review, devolution has also come onto the agenda. The need for flexibility is still 
necessary and the Council is not yet in a position to be clear about its 
requirements at corporate management team level. This will be a matter for the 
new Managing Director to consider. 

 
5. Reallocation of line management responsibilities 
 
5.1 Once the agreement referred to in the previous item is finalised, it is proposed, 

pending the appointment of a new Managing Director/Head of Paid Service, to 
reallocate line management responsibilities as follows: 

 
(a) Legal Services, Democratic Services, Electoral Services and Human 

Resources teams be line-managed by the Director of Resources; 
 

(b) Communications and Policy & Partnerships teams be line-managed by the 
Managing Director/Head of Paid Service 

 
6. Interim Appointments  
 
6.1 The interim appointments for consideration are as follows: 

 

 Monitoring Officer  

 Deputy Managing Director  
 
Monitoring Officer 

 
6.2 A local authority has general flexibility to appoint whatever officers it thinks fit.  

Despite this general flexibility, there are a number of statutory exceptions.  
 
6.3 The Local Government Act 1989 Section 5 provides that the Council must 

appoint a Monitoring Officer to check on the correctness and propriety of the 
authority’s decisions.  The Monitoring officer may not also be Head of Paid 
Service or the Council’s Chief Finance Officer. The Monitoring Officer has power 
to nominate deputies Local Government Act 1989 Section 5A. 

 
6.4 It is proposed that Sandra Herbert, the Council’s Legal Services Manager and 

currently a Deputy Monitoring Officer, be appointed as the Council’s Monitoring 
Officer. Sandra Herbert is an experienced solicitor with many years’ experience 
as both a Monitoring Officer and Deputy Monitoring Officer in local government. It 
is also proposed that Joan Poole continues as a Deputy Monitoring Officer.  

 

Page 13

Agenda item number: 6



 
 

 
 

  
Deputy Managing Director 

 
6.5 As part of the consideration of the proposed restructuring of the Council’s 

Corporate Management Team (CMT) in 2015, the Employment Committee 
agreed the appointment of a Deputy Managing Director on a fixed term basis. 
The designated Deputy Managing Director responsibilities involve deputising for 
the Managing Director in her absence. 

 
6.6 Until her retirement, the Managing Director and Chairman of the Employment 

Committee envisage the role of Deputy Managing Director will be required to 
support the Managing Director in delivering on key targets for her remaining 
employment as well as being engaged in a handover process with the new 
Managing Director.  

 
6.7 There are a number of options available to the Council as to how best to fill the 

role of Deputy Managing Director on an interim basis. The Employment 
Committee is asked to consider these options.  

 
 Option 1 
 
6.8 To enable effective business continuity and minimise risk, all Directors could be 

asked to assume the role of Deputy Managing Director via an addendum to 
contract on a temporary basis until 30 June 2017. 

 
6.9 The Managing Director could apportion areas of responsibility each Deputy 

Managing Director/Director would assume in her absence e.g. economic 
development, planning, finance, corporate governance/member general queries. 
This would ensure that succession planning is maximised and equal opportunities 
afforded in terms of gaining experience for future promotion prospects and all staff 
and members can be given these areas of responsibility so they know from the 
outset who to contact when the Managing Director is not available.  

 
 Option 2 
 
6.10 Alternatively, to give further flexibility for the organisation and choice for the 

Managing Director, the Managing Director could nominate a director as the ‘first 
point of call’ to act as Deputy Managing Director in her absence.  

 
 Option 3 
 
6.11 A further option would be for the Employment Committee to recommend to 

Council the appointment of an individual Director to take on the additional 
responsibilities of Deputy Managing Director. 

 
7. Permanent Appointments  
 
7.1 The permanent appointments for consideration, subject to completion of the 

agreement referred to above, are as follows: 
 

 Returning Officer for the election of borough and parish councillors, and   

 Electoral Registration Officer  

Page 14

Agenda item number: 6



 
 

 
 

 
Returning Officer and Electoral Registration Officer  

 
7.2 Every district council in England is required by Section 35(1) of the Representation 

of the People Act 1983 Act to appoint an officer of the council to be the Returning 
Officer (RO) for elections of district and parish councillors1.  Section 8(2)(a) of the 
1983 Act also requires the Council to appoint an officer to be the Electoral 
Registration Officer (ERO).  The ERO is responsible for the preparation and 
maintenance of the electoral register for any parliamentary constituency or part of a 
constituency within its area.   

 
7.3 According to Section 28(1) of the 1983 Act, only the ERO may act as the (Acting) 

Returning Officer at Parliamentary elections, the Returning Officer for these 
elections being the High Sheriff.  It makes sense, therefore, to ensure that one 
officer is appointed as both the ERO and RO. 

 
7.4 The usual practice in most councils is for the Chief Executive/Managing Director 

to hold the roles of RO and ERO.  It is proposed to revert to that arrangement by 
appointing the Managing Director to these roles.  This will mean that the Council 
can include this role in the job description for the new Managing Director/Head of 
Paid Service. 

  
7.5 In relation to the appointment of deputies, it is recommended that the Council 

confirms the appointment of Elaine Bradbrook (Electoral Services Manager) as 
Deputy ERO.  It is not be necessary to formally appoint a Deputy RO as the RO 
may appoint such deputies as they may deem appropriate for each scheduled 
election. 

 
8. Managing Director’s (and Deputy Managing Director’s) salary scale 

 
8.1 On 6 October 2016, the Council approved the arrangements for the retirement of 

the current Managing Director and recruitment of her successor. The initial part of 
the recruitment process will be to attract suitably qualified and experienced 
candidates to apply for the role of Managing Director/Head of Paid Service. The 
advertisement of the post will need to include salary details.  

 
8.2 Our Pay Policy Statement for 2016-17 provides for single salary points for both 

the Managing Director and Deputy Managing Director roles, with progressive 
salary scales for all other posts within the Council. The provision of a salary scale 
for the post of Managing Director/Head of Paid Service would enable the Council 
to provide opportunity for a degree of pay progression for the successful 
candidate. Potential applicants are likely to expect a progressive salary scale and 
therefore if we can advertise as such, this should assist the Council in attracting 
suitable candidates. Moving from a single spot salary to a progressive salary 
scale would also bring this post into line with the Council’s pay scales for other 
posts.  

 

                                                
1
 In respect of County Council elections, the County Returning Officer normally appoints district council 

Returning Officers as Deputy Returning Officers  

Page 15

Agenda item number: 6



 
 

 
 

8.3 Approval of this proposal will require an update to our current Pay Policy 
Statement, to reflect the new pay arrangements. The proposed salary scale for 
the Managing Director/Head of Paid Service post is: 
 

£120,877 
£123,712 
£126,616 

 
8.4 Progression within the scale will be dependent upon satisfactory performance, as 

determined by the Council’s performance management processes. 
 

8.5 It is proposed to leave the Deputy Managing Director salary as a single pay point 
for the time being, with a view to reviewing in the future. 

 
9. The Chief Finance Officer (CFO/Section 151 Officer) 
 
9.1 The Local Government Act 1972 Section 151 provides that the Council must 

secure that one of their officers is responsible for the administration of financial 
affairs, to ensure financial probity and to make reports accordingly. The Local 
Government Finance Act 1988 provides that a Chief Finance Officer must hold a 
professional accountancy qualification. The Council’s Managing Director Sue 
Sturgeon currently holds this  position. 

 
9.2 It is suggested that, following the retirement of Sue Sturgeon on 31 May 2017,  

Claire Morris the Head of Financial Services should assume responsibility for the 
role of Section 151 Officer and be the Council’s Chief Finance Officer in relation 
to its statutory duty to make arrangements for the proper administration of the 
Council’s financial affairs. 

 
9.3 The post will continue to be designated Head of Financial Services. 
 
9.4 This is a necessary adjustment as the Section 151 role is currently held within 

the Managing Director’s position due to the present post holder’s qualifications 
and experience and the current Managing Director will mentor the Head of 
Financial Services over the next six months to ensure the post holder’s transition 
into the new CFO role. 

 
9.5 It is likely that the knowledge, skills and abilities required for the new Managing 

Director will be in areas e.g. place-shaping, shared services, application of new 
technology to improve customer services. Therefore, keeping the CFO as a pre-
requisite may diminish the pool of prospective applicants for the Managing 
Director position.  

 

10.       Financial Implications 
 

10.1 The Council’s Pay Policy Statement 2016-17 provides for a specific payment to 
be made to the Monitoring Officer and the Chief Finance Officer. The amount in 
each case is £5,300 p.a.   

 
10.2 The two Deputy Monitoring Officers currently receive a small payment of £1,500 

p.a. each.  If the Council appoints one of the Deputies as the Monitoring Officer, 

Page 16

Agenda item number: 6



 
 

 
 

the cost in the current year would be £1,600.  This additional sum can be 
accommodated in the current year’s budget. 

 
10.3 The additional payment for the Chief Finance Officer role will not take effect until 

1 June 2017 and provision would be made in the 2017-18 budget. 
 
10.4 The cost of the Deputy Managing Director will depend on the decision taken by 

the Council on the recommendation of the Employment Committee, but the 
maximum cost will be around £10,000 (full year estimate). 

  
10.5 If the Council approves the recommendations set out in the paragraphs 6, 7 and 

8 above, it will be necessary to make appropriate amendments to the current Pay 
Policy Statement 2016-17, which was approved by the Council on 10 February 
2016.  The Committee is asked to recommend to Council that the current Pay 
Policy Statement be amended to reflect these changes. 

 
11.  Legal Implications 

 
11.1 A local authority may appoint whatever officers it thinks are necessary to carry 

out any function it is responsible for discharging. Despite this general flexibility, 
however, local authorities have duties to designate one of their officers as Head 
of Paid Service who is responsible for preparing reports on the way the local 
authority’s staff is organised, on the authority’s staffing needs and on the co-
ordination of the way in which the authority’s functions are discharged (Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989 Section 4). The Council must also appoint a 
Monitoring Officer to check on the correctness and propriety of the Council’s 
decisions (Local Government Act 1989 section 5) and to secure that one of their 
officers is responsible for the administration of financial affairs (Local 
Government Act 1972 Section 151). 

 
11.2 The Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 

2000 (SI 2000/2853) provides that the appointment of the Council’s statutory 
officers  is not an Executive function and is  reserved only for the consideration of 
and decision by Full Council. 

 
11.3 The Representation of the People Act 1983 Section 35 requires the Council to 

appoint an officer of the Council to be the Returning Officer for the elections of 
borough and parish councillors. Section 8(2)(a) of the 1983 Act also requires the 
Council to appoint an officer to be the Electoral Registration Officer who is 
responsible for the preparation and maintenance of the electoral register for any 
parliamentary constituency or part of a constituency within its area. 

  

11.4  The Localism Act 2011 Section 38 requires English and Welsh local authorities to 
produce a Pay Policy statement each financial year which sets out the Council's 
approach towards a range of issues relating to the pay of its workforce, 
particularly its senior staff and its lowest paid employees. Approval of the 
Council’s Pay Policy Statement is a matter for full Council.  

 
11.5 Under the Localism Act 2011 Section 39(4), the Council may by resolution 

amend its pay policy statement (including after the beginning of the financial year 
to which it relates). 

Page 17

Agenda item number: 6



 
 

 
 

 
12.  Human Resource Implications 
 
12.1 The human resource implications are set out in the body of this report. 

 
13. Background Papers 

 
The Council’s Pay Policy Statement 2016-17 
 

14. Appendices 
 

None 
 

 

Page 18

Agenda item number: 6


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Corporate Management Team: Settlement Agreement - Post No. 1.016
	6 Interim appointments to statutory officer responsibilities and reallocation of line management responsibilities

